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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

St. Thomas' Episcopal Church consists of the church building proper, the parish
hall, and the rector's study with connecting cloister. The present church building
proper is rectangular in shape, one story in height (approximately 25 feet from the
ground to the eaves), approximately 40 feet in width and 105 feet in length, The
cutline of the original church~-the front and main part of the building~-is readily
discernible. It is of brick construction; the original is laid in Flemish bond and
the addition to the rear is largely in American bond. Extending from the southeast
rear corner of the church building is the parish hall and from the northeast rear -
corner, the cloister leading to the rector's study., The facade has a recessed
portico with two Doric columns flanked by two Doric pilasters, the latter of which
are repeated at the front corners of the building. Within the portico, and above
the main door,is a circular rose window. Below the plain cornice, across the facade,
and along the sides of the church are a frieze and architrave, likewise plain. The
facade is capped by a triangularpediment with a louvered fan window., There is one
window on either side of the portico with muntins and plain glass and five windows
along both sides of the building, each with stained glass, All the windows have
Gothic, or pointed, arches. Rising from the gable roof above the facade is a tower,
composed of a base of three square wooden sections {the upper two paneled) of dimin-
ishing size and an octagonal cupola. The cupola has a dentil cornice, buttressed
base, pilasters, louvered openings, and a ribbed dome surmounted by a cress, both
sheathed in copper.

Within the church, the pews are divided by a center aisle and flanked by side
aisles along the walls, The opening into the chancel is flanked by Doric columns,
and at the back of the chancel is a three-part stained-glass window. The walls of
the nave have a dentil molding,

The original church building was begun in 1833 and completed in 1834 at a cost
of $3,500. With some alterations, it exists today as the front and main part of
the present structure, Rectangular in shape and one story in height, it was approx-
imately 40 feet in width and 65 feet in length, Except for the fact that the windows
were probably rectangular rather than with pointed arches (there is some structural
evidence of this) and with clear,not stained,glass, the exterior of the original was
generally the same as at present. According to Bishop William Meade,"In 1853. . .
the church edifice was enlarged, and at the same time both the exterior and interior
were much improved." That year also Miss Georgiana Cave of Montebello, Orange
County, spoke of the building being enlarged and of an organ for the church. It is
probable that the enlargement included the extension of the chancel and a small
increase in the size of the nave., (A photograph of the exterior of the church dated
circa 1908 shows the addition). The windows also may have been altered at this time
to the Gothic form. The interior improvements referred to quite possibly included
the large central Gothic arch over the entrance to the chancel and the similar but
smaller arches flanking and adjoining it, as an interior photograph of the same

- vintage as the aforementioned photograph attests, Certainly included among the
improvements was the installation of the first church organ.

There was a gallery, perhaps incorporated in the initial construction, which
extended across the building at the rear of the pews and was supported by wooden
columns. It was reached by stairs located in the vestibules on either side of the
front door.

In 1912 the small addition to the rear was extended, and, thus enlarged, became
the parish hall, In 1928 the roof of the addition was raised, In that year also
the ncw, and present,parish hall was constructed, extending out from the southeast
(Sece continuation sheet #1)
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St. Thomas' Episcopal Church is the second, and present,church of the parish of that
name, St. Thomas' Parish was formed in 1740. The first parish church, located on the
Taylor property, long known as Meadowfarm, was called the Middle or Brick Church. The
ancient communion plate of that Anglican,or Established, Church--a silver chalice and
paten dating from 1766-1767 and engraved with the name of the parish--are in the posses-
sipn of St, Thomas' Church. After demolition of the Middle Church,as a result of the
confiscation of church and glebé property, and a period of years when Episcopalian
communicants worshipped informally in various locations, the main part of the present
St. Thomas' Church was built on land purchased by the vestry in 1833, The building was
completed the following vear.

From a historical standpoint,S$St. Thomas' served during the Civil War as a hospital
following the battles at Cedar Mountain, Chancellorsville, the Wilderness, and Spotsyl-
vania Court House. At one point it was used as.a shelter for refugees from Fredericks~
burg when that town was badly damaged by fighting. During the winter of 1863-64 when
the Army of Northern Virginia held defensive positions along the Rapidan River in Orange
County, General Robert E, Lee and other officers and men worshipped at St. Thomas',
GCeneral Lee's pew is preserved, But it is from an architectural standpoint that St.
Thomas' is of particular importance.

The original section of St, Thomas' follows closely the design of old Christ Chuzch
in Charlottesville, which was demolished in 1895. Christ Church was erected in 1824
from plans furnished by Thomas Jefferson. Jefferson's plan, it has been said, was based
on that of a church near his home while in Paris, Chalgrin's St. Philippe du Roule.
Christ Church was built by William B, Phillips, whom Jefferson had secured to do brick
work at the University of Virginia. As a master builder, Phillips carried out the
Jeffersonian style in work done in Albemarle and neighboring counties. During the
1820s and 1830s he was engaged in building in the Orange area; he built the Madison
County Courthouse in the late 1820s and a jail in Orange in the mid 1830s, among other
structures., Because of the careful use of classical details, a hallmark of Phillips'
work, it seems probabls that he built St, Thomas' in 1833~1834 as well. If this was so,
it would tend to explain why that church follows so closely the design of Christ Church,
which Phillips had done earlier. 7

So far as is presently known, Jefferson provided plans for only one church building--
old Christ Church. That no longer stands, Therefore, St. Thomas' Episcopal Church--~
patterned closely on Christ Church and perbaps built by the same master builder--
uniquely significant in architectural history as being presumably the only surviving
building which reflects Thomas Jefferson's ideas on church architecture.
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6. Representation in Existing Surveys
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7+ Description
corner of the church, Considerable alterations to the interior at that time
included removal of the gallery and the pointed arches over and flavnking the
chancel entrance and replacing the center arch with a rectangular opening
flanked by Doric columns. The chancel was likewvise extended still further,
Finally in 1975 the rector's study was built, connected to the church building
by a cloister. The stained-glass windows were added at various times since 1885;
some of the stained glass was furnished by Tiffany.
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